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prepared in accordance with the Statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the Uniform
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earned pension benefits (normal costs) in the current year. If the plan is more than 100% funded and
the overfunding credits are more than the normal cost requirement, no contributions are due (paid
during the year).
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November 20, 2003

Mr. Thomas D. Kaminski
County Administrator
Manistee County
Manistee, Ml 49660

Dear Mr. Kaminski:

The primary purpose of this letter is to prepare, for management, information which delineates
those items encountered during the course of the audit which were either not related to the
financial, internal control and compliance reports or were not material enough to comment on
relative to them. However, these items might be significant when viewed from a management
perspective or in the longer term. This letter is intended only for the use of management and
any other parties not informed of these matters might misconstrue their meanings.

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

Our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to
obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with general accepted accounting
principles. Because of the concept of reasonable assurance and because we did not perform a
detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors, irregularities, or
ilegal acts, including fraud and defaications, may exist and not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control structure of Manistee County.
Management has the responsibility for adopting sound accounting policies, for maintaining an
adequate and effective system of accounts, for safeguarding assets and for maintaining the
structure of the internal control system to help assure the proper recording of transactions. Our
consideration of the system of internal control was solely for the purpose of determining our
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control structure.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement, we will advise management of the
appropriateness of the accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting
policies used by Manistee County are listed in Note B. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the fiscal year. We
noted no transactions entered into by Manistee County during the year that were both
significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform
you, of transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
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Management Judgements and Accounting Estimates

Some accounting estimates are utilized in financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. Our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of the estimates are based on reviewing and testing the historical
data provided by management and using this data to compute the liability.

Significant Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a
proposed correction of the general purpose financial statements that, in our judgment, may not
have been detected except through our auditing procedures. These adjustments may include
those proposed by us but not recorded by Manistee County that could potentially cause future
financial statements to be materially misstated, even though we have concluded such
adjustments are not material to the current financial statements. Our audit adjustments,
individually and in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the financial reporting process.

The County Commission has done an excellent job of addressing the financial accountability
within the County. The updates to GASB 34 and the change of fiscal year are examples of the
forward thinking of the County

The following are comments on items noted during the audit with recommendations for
correction:

COMMENT: The internal control over accounts receivable and cash is improved in the
District Court. The resultant increased collections are a by product of this emphasis.
This area has really improved dramatically.

COMMENT: The enforcement of internal control in the Treasurer's Office has
improved.

RECOMMENDATION: Ongoing periodic replacement of functions without warning such
as deposits, opening the mail, counting of cash and receipting by the Treasurer has
added an increased level of control within the office.

COMMENT: It is imperative that the Treasurers Office keep all personnel informed
concerning any situations which arise and have a potential impact.

RECOMMENDATION: Additional security can be obtained physically within the office.
Efforts must be made to insure that the controls, physical and internal are upgraded.
This includes additional attention to software applications involving cash with particular
emphasis on tax collections. Continue to review various application software with the
goal of having the best integrated software available.

Again, it is important to remember that this report is for information only and provided to
management with the intent to improve management practices within Manistee County.

@e:i&iu:&ér\

David E Wilson, CPA
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DAVID E. WILSON, CPA, PC (231) 276-7668
P.O. Box 205 Fax: (231) 276-7687
3015 M-137 E-mail: wilson@wilsonward.com
Interlochen, MI 49643

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the County Commission
Manistee County, Michigan

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Manistee County, Michigan as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2003. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Manistee County, Michigan’s general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Manistee County, Michigan’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A
material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting that we have reported to management of the Manistee County, Michigan, in a separate
letter dated November 20, 2003.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, others within the
organization, the Board, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Qﬁv«:&\ EZ/LL,:&;\Q’PR

Interlochen, Mi
November 20, 2003




DAVID E. WILSON, CPA (231) 276-7668
P.O. Box 205 Fax: (231) 276-7687

3015 M-137 E-mail: wilson@wilsonward.com
Interlochen, M1 49643

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Board of Commissioners
Manistee County
Manistee, Michigan

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Manistee County, Michigan, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2003. Manistee County, Michigan’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compiliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Manistee County,
Michigan’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Manistee County,
Michigan’'s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Manistee County,
Michigan’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Manistee County,
Michigan’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Manistee County, Michigan, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2003.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Manistee County, Michigan, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
Manistee County, Michigan's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
others within the organization, City Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Doad v il orn

Interlochen, Michigan
November 20, 2003
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DAVID E. WILSON, CPA, PC (231) 276-7668
P.O. Box 205 Fax: (231) 276-7687
3015 M-137 E-mail:wilson@wilsonward.com
Interlochen, MI 49643

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the County Commission
Manistee County, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Manistee County, Michigan as of and for the year
September 30, 2003, which collectively comprise Manistee County, Michigan’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Manistee County,
Michigan’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective of the governmental activities, the business
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Manistee County, as of September 30, 2003, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for each major
fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

The management discussion and analysis and required budgetary comparison information identified in the
table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued a report dated November 20,
2003 on our consideration of Manistee County, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contract and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read

S conjunction with this report inrconsidering the results of our audit.

S S VWS R Y Ja

Interlochen, MI
November 20, 2003




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Manistee County, Michigan we offer the readers of the Manistee County
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the financial
statements and notes to the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

. The assets of Manistee County exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2003 by
$11,304,944. Of this amount $8,256,758 may be used to meet the government'’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

. At September 30, 2003 the County’s governmental funds reported a combined fund
balance of $1,802,532.

. At September 30, 2003, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $371,143 or 4%
of the general fund expenditures. This was no change in fund balance from the prior year.

. It is impossible to compare revenue and expenditures in FY02/03 with the prior year. In
2002 we changed the County’s fiscal year from ending 12/31 to ending 9/30. This caused
the prior year to be only a nine month year therefore making comparisons impossible.

. Total long term debt in the Governmental Activities decreased by $145,000 from the prior
fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County financial
statements. The County basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. accrued interest expense).



Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that area
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include legislative,
judicial, general government, public safety and health. The business-type activities of the County
include delinquent property tax collection, and Medical Care Facility.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate component units for which the County is financially
accountable. Financial information for component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

Manistee County

Government Wide
Compressed Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets $3,045,487 $3,016,177  $6,061,664
Captial Assets, net 6,706,820 1,548,514 8,255,334
Total Assets 8,752,307 4,564 691 14,316,998
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilitites 1,432,955 814,297 2,247,252
Noncurrent liabilites 2,779,594 702,208 3,481,802
Total Liabilities 4,212,549 1,516,505 5,729,054
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,989,820 1,548,514 5,538,334
Restricted 886,160 1,847,785 2,733,945
Unrestricted (deficit) 663,778 (348,113) 315,665
Total Net Assets 5,639,758 3,048,186 8,587,944
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $9,752,307 $4,564,691 $14,316,998
Manistee County
Government Wide
Compressed Statement of Activities
Governmental Business-Type Total
Revenue
Property Taxes $4,978,179 $ 365,429 $5,343,658
Charges for Services 1,582,885 5,913,111 7,495,996
Operating Grants 935,619 935,619
State-Shared Revenue 485,528 157,841 643,369
Transfers and Misc 216,063 34,651 250,714
Franchise Tax 1,588,495 337,112 1,925,607
Total Revenue 9,786,769 6,808,144 16,594,913



Expenses

General Government $4,301,980 $4,301,980
Public Safety 4,637,802 4,637,802
Health and Recreation 1,077,994 6,645,326 7,723,320
Recreation and Culture 14,500 14,500
Total Expenses 10,032,276 6,645,326 16,677,602

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, uniike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement on revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The County maintains many individual government funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, central dispatch ES11, and
the Building Authority funds, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the
other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, special revenue and debt
service funds. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules have been provided herein to
demonstrate compliance with those budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 54-57 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its
information services contracts, assessing and mapping activities and delinquent taxes. Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the various County functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its self



insurance, mental health self insurance and motor pool activities. Because these services
predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 67-70 of this report.

Fiduciary funds (Trust and Agency). Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held
for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available
to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like
that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 22 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 31-50 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statement.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 53-80 of this
report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $11,304,944 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year. A large portion of the County’s net assets reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure), less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay the debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

Net Assets

The County uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Investment in capital assets, net of related debt, is 72% of
total net assets. An additional portion of the County’s net assets (16%) represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Restricted net assets are
those net assets that have constraints placed on them by either: a) externally imposed by
creditors, grants, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation. Enabling legislation authorizes the
government to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources and includes
a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purpose
stipulated in the legislation. All such assets (except for assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt) are considered restricted or unrestricted. The smallest portion of the County’s net
assets (12%) are unrestricted net assets. These net assets may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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See the following two pages for financial information on net assets.
Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities include:

. Legislative activities - Expenditures related to the Board of Commissioners and high-
level administrative expenditures.

. Judicial activities - Expenditures related to the administration of Circuit, District, and
Probate/Family Courts and Court Probation units.

. General government activities - Expenditures related to the support departments of the

County such as Administration, Human Resources, Treasury, Information Services,
Facilities Management, and Finance.

. Public safety - Expenditures related to the Sheriff's Administration and Road Patrol and
County Corrections services.
. Health - Expenditures related to public health services such as immunization, solid

waste, child care, Medical Examiner, and housing assistance programs.
Business Type Activities

Business Type Activities include:

. Delinquent tax revolving fund - This fund was established as a means to provide the
local governments within the County’s jurisdiction with 100% of the property tax
distributions owed to them annually. The County then acts as the collection agency for
the outstanding delinquent taxes. Current policy is to maintain cash and investments to
fund 100% of the prior year’s delinquent tax settlement.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County governmental fund statements is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. Unreserved fund balance represented 4% of annual
government expenditures in 2003.

Priority funds. The County proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Other factors considering the finances of these funds have been addressed in the discussion of
the County’s business-type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Amended budgetary expenditures differed from the originally adopted budget mainly for the
following reasons:

The combination of the Manistee and Benzie counties Friend of the Court to include
both counties in the Manistee County budget for an increase of $58,925.

Increases in the jail costs for prisoner medical and meal costs along with overtime costs
due to jail employees on short term disability for an increase of $179,000

Staffing changes in the equalization department and two Emergency Services grants
also caused the budget to increase.

Significant budget variances existed between the final amended budget and actual amounts.
Major variations are summarized as follows:

There were some new data processing eguipment upgrades that caused signifigant
savings in this area.

There were open positions most of the year in the Equalization, District Court and the
Sheriff Department.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets - a capital asset is an asset whose cost exceeds $5,000 and useful life
is greater than two years. Included in the cost of a capital asset are items such as labor
and freight and any other costs associated with bringing the asst into full operation.
Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the course of their useful
lives.

During the year, we concluded construction on the second phase of the Courthouse
Renovation Project. The original budget for this project was 1.9 million dollars but with
cost overruns and change orders the final cost was approximately 2.9 million. The
project was done to provide better working conditions for the employees of Manistee
County and foremost to somewhat separate the governmental offices from the courts.
The was done primarily for security measures, and to benefit the public that uses our
facility.

Debt administration - debt incurred in the course of constructing or acquiring a capital
asset is recorded and paid for from a debt service fund.

The County has three general obligation bonds for their major capital projects this year
The first twenty-year bond issue took place in 1990 for the construction of a new Jail.
The second bond issue, took place in 1999 for 1.375 million dollars and was for the first
phase of the Courthouse renovation. A third bond issue took place in 2000 for $825,000
and was for phase two of the court house renovation.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The taxable value of commercial, residential, and personal property increased 7.21% in
the 2003 fiscal year.

12



Manistee County has enjoyed slow but steady economic growth during the last several years,
despite the broader economic climate. We attribute much of our County’s growth to its close
proximity to Michigan Lakeshore and the addition of a new casino. The County anticipates
slow economic growth to continue throughout 2004 and even into 2005. Despite this good
news, as with all counties in Michigan Manistee County is being hit hard by State and Federal
budget cuts. This combined with expenses rising at a rate faster than revenue, our 2005
budget projections reflects an anticipated operating deficit of between $180,000 to as high as
$800,000 depending on several factors such as the rising cost of health insurance for county

employees.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County finances for all
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the Budget and Finance Department, Manistee County, Michigan, 415 Third Street, Manistee,
MI 49660. Additional information can be found at our website at www.manisteecounty.net

13



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net)
Internal balances
Inventories
Captial Assets, net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Other Current Liabilities
Current Portion of LTD
Noncurrent liabilites
Accrued Compensated Absences
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects

By Donors

Debt Service

Other
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Manistee County
Government Wide
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2003

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$1,959,636 $31,270 $1,990,906 $835,061
2,210,749 2,210,749 236,651
948,121 745,618 1,693,739 1,019,633
137,730 137,730 92,172
28,540 28,540 383,807
6,706,820 1,548,514 8,255,334 19,582,238
9,752,307 4,564,691 14,316,998 22,119,562
170,626 441,195 611,821
959,630 959,630
112,699 373,102 485,801 450,268
190,000 190,000
252,594 702,208 954,802
2,527,000 2,527,000 383,398
4,212,549 1,516,505 5,729,054 833,666
3,989,820 1,548,514 5,538,334 19,225,962
886,160 1,796,531 2,682,691 1,576,831
51,254 51,254 0
0
663,778 (348,113) 315,665 483,103
5,639,758 3,048,186 8,587,944 21,285,896
$9,752,307 $4,564,691 $14,316,998 $22,119,562
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Receivables:
Taxes - Current
Taxes - Delinquent
Accounts Receivable

Due From Other Funds

Prepaid Expenses

Other Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)

Amount to be Provided for:
Compensated Absences
Retirement of Long-term Debt

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Due to State

Other Trust ltems Payable
Deferred Revenue
Compensated Absences
Notes Payabie

General Obligation Bonds Payable
Accounts Payable

Other Liabilities
Maintenance of Effort

Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Govt. Units

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND EQUITY
Contributed Capital
investment in Fixed Assets
Fund Balance
Reserved
Unreserved

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES &
FUND EQUITY

Manistee County
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Building Non Major Total
General 911 Central Authority Governmental Governmental
Fund Dispatch Fund Funds Funds
$656,136 $567,828 $20,359 $715,313 $1,959,636
0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
725,366 0 222,755 948,121
0 0 0 0
51,637 0 0 51,637
0 0 86,093 86,093
0 0 0 0
0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
1,433,139 567,828 20,359 1,024,161 3,045,487
0 0 0
0 0 0
886,160 73,470 959,630
0 0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
120,431 9,083 1,900 39,212 170,626
55,405 57,294 112,699
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,061,996 9,083 1,900 169,976 1,242,955
0
0
886,160 0 0 886,160
(515,017) 558,745 18,459 854,185 916,372
371,143 558,745 18,459 854,185 1,802,532
$1,433,139 $567,828 $20,359 $1,024,161 $3,045,487

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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REVENUES

Taxes & Penalities
Licenses & Permits
Contracts and Grants
Federal Grants
State Grants
Local Contributions
Charges for Service
Fines & Forfeits
Interest and Rentals
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Legislative
Judicial
General Government
Public Safety
Health and Welfare
Public Works

Cultural and Recreation

Other
Payment on Debt
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from Debt
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Sale of Assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Sources over Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance, October 1
Prior Period Audit Adjustment

Fund Balance, September 30

Manistee County
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Building Non Major Total
General 911 Central Authority ~ Governmental Governmental

Fund Dispatch Fund Funds Funds
$4,129,141 $729,954 $4,520 $114,564 $4,978,179
866 0 0 0 866
0 0 0 0 0
347,164 0 0 44,520 391,684
874,475 0 0 428,837 1,303,312
220,417 0 0 81,083 301,500
1,582,885 0 0 0 1,582,885
0 0 0 7,000 7,000
35,690 6,827 0 0 42,517
112,660 354,565 0 538,055 1,005,280
7,303,298 1,091,346 4,520 1,214,059 9,613,223
69,776 0 0 0 69,776
1,736,187 0] 0 0 1,736,187
1,870,948 0 0 0 1,870,948
2,255,592 1,088,616 2,710,012 1,293,594 7,347,814
843,382 0 0 234,612 1,077,994
0 0 0 0 0
14,500 0 0 0 14,500
201,835 0 40,048 2,476,803 2,718,686
0 45,000 0 100,000 145,000
6,992,220 1,133,616 2,750,060 1,722,799 12,598,695
311,078 (42,270)  (2,745,540) (508,740) (2,985,472)
0 0 0 0 0
361,604 0 70,955 503,977 936,536
(672,681) 0 0 (90,309) (762,990)
0 0 0 0 0
(311,077) 0 70,955 413,668 173,546
1 (42,270)  (2,674,585) (95,072) (2,811,926)
371,142 601,015 2,693,044 949,257 4,614,458
0 0 0 0 0
$371,143 $558,745 $18,459 $854,185 $1,802,532
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Manistee County
Reconciliation Report - GAS 34
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet on Government Balance Sheet
to Net assets of Governmental Activities on the Statement of Net Assets

Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet 916,372
Increase in Assets not booked in Government Balance Sheet 2,717,000
Decrease in Long Term Debt 145,000
Compensated Absences All Recorded (252,594)
Long Term Debt Recorded (2,862,000)
Total Net Assets 663,778

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Deficiency of Revenues (2,811,926)

Capital Outlays in Governmental added to Assets 2,715,007
in Statement of Activities

Repayment of Bond Principal is an expenditure in the 145,000
government funds where it is as reduction in Long Term Debt

Depreciation is recorded in the Statement of Activities with the (293,588)
offset to accumulated depreciation in the Net Assets.

Increases in compensated absences are recorded when earned 0

in the Statement of Activities

Total Changes in Statement of Activities (245,507)

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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REVENUE

Taxes and Penaities
Licenses and Permits
Federal Grants

State Grants

Local Contributions
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest and Rentals
Other Revenues

MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AN

D ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Legislative
Judicial

General Government

Public Safety

Health and Welfare

Cultural and Recreational

Other
Debt Service
Principal

Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURE

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from Financing

Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Increase in Long Term Debt

EXCESS REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

FUND EQUITY October 1, 2002

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

FUND EQUITY SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance
Budget Favorable

Approved Amended Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,055,178 $4,067,863 $4,129,141 $61,278
700 700 866 166
326,555 326,555 347,164 20,609
927,583 908,113 874,475 -33,638
203,658 193,552 220,417 26,865
1,317,844 1,556,940 1,582,885 25,945
0 0 0 0
131,800 131,800 35,690 -96,110
108,745 109,391 112,660 3,269
7,072,063 7,294,914 7,303,298 8,384
72,355 72,355 69,776 -2,579
1,771,219 1,826,712 1,736,187 -90,525
1,881,412 1,926,342 1,870,948 -55,394
2,058,763 2,257,125 2,255,592 -1,533
843,892 857,692 843,382 -14,310
14,500 14,500 14,500 0
214,200 201,599 201,835 236
0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
7,156,325 8,992,220 -164,105
138,589 311,078 172,489
0 0 0
430,773 361,604 -69,169
569,362 672,681 103,319
0 0 0
0 1 1

371,142

0

$371,143

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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MANISTEE COUNTY , MICHIGAN
MANISTEE COUNTY 9-1-1/CENTRAL DISPATCH
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget Vs. Actual
For the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2003

Revenues
Taxes $783,007 $788,007 $729,954 ($58,053)
Misc Revenue 22,500 22,500 272,438 249,938
Interest Income 20,000 20,000 6,827 (13,173)
Wireless 911 50,000 50,000 82,127 32,127
Total Revenues 875,507 880,507 1,091,346 210,839

Eernditu res

Current

Legislative

Judicial

General Government

Public Safety 787,507 1,185,707 1,076,405 109,302
Health and Welfare

Cultural and Recreational

Other
Debt Service
Principal 45,000 45,000 45,000 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 20,000 20,000 12,211 7,789
852,507 1,250,707 1,133,616 117,091
Excess Revenue (Expenditure) $23,000 ($370,200) ($42,270) 393,748

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE
BUILDING AUTHORITY - BUDGET VS ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Taxes $0 $0 $0 0
Grant 0 0 0 0
Interest 4,520 4,520 4,520 0
Total Revenue 4,520 4,520 4,520 0
EXPENDITURES
Payment on Installment Purchase 0 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 2,655,012 2,655,012 2,655,012 0
Miscellaneous Expense 24,093 24,093 24,093 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures (2,674,585) (2,674,585) (2,674,585) 0
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Debt 0 0 0 0
Operating Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Operating Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures and Other  (2,674,585) (2,674,585) (2,674,585) 0
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses
Fund Balance, October 1 2,693,044 2,693,044 2,693,044
Fund Balance, September 30 $18,459 $18,459 $18,459

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASSETS

Cash

Cash and Investments Little River

Due From Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITITES

Trust Payables
Due to Other Units

Total Liabilities

MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Trust & District
Agency Court
Fund Fund Total
$1,516,177 $130,740 $1,646,917
1,442 507 0 1,442 507
0 0 0
2,958,684 130,740 3,089 424
2,958,684 130,740 3,089,424
0 0 0
$2,958,684 $130,740 $3,089,424

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS & LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Cash
Due From General Fund
Total Assets

District Court Fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Court order payable

Trust and Agency Fund

Trust Payables

Due to Local Units

Due to Federal Government
Due to State

Undistributed Tax Collections
Court Orders Payable
Casino Distribution

Other Trust ltems

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
QOctober 1, 2002 Increase Decrease September 30,2003
$2,302,427 $0 ($656,257) $2,058,684
0 0 0 0
2,302,427 0 (656,257) 2,958,684
107,785 0 106,289 1,496
102,172 (101,749) 0 423
(545,117) 0 (895,782) 350,665
37,140 (283) 0 36,857
818,654 (19,935) 0 798,719
454,385 0 430,941 23,444
17,566 0 793 16,773
969,751 0 (472,756) 1,442 507
340,091 (52,291) 0 287,800
$2,302,427 ($174,258) ($830,515) $2,958,684

23

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.



ASSETS
Cash
Accounts Receivable
Assets Limited as to Use
Property and Equipment
Prepaid Insurance
Inventories
Other Assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY

Accounts Payabie
Compensated Absences
Salaries and Related Liabilities
Maintenance of Effort

Due to Other Local Units
Other Current Liabilties
Third-party settlements
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Equity

Retained Earnings

Total Liabilities &
Fund Equity

MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Medical
Care
Facility Total
$31,270 $31,270
745,618 745,618
2,210,749 2,210,749
1,548,514 1,548,514
0 0]
28,540 28,540
0 0
$4,564,691 34,564,691
$441 195 $441,195
702,208 702,208
110,368 110,368
o} 0
0 0]
39,475 39,475
223,259 223,259
0 0
1,516,505 1,516,505
3,048,186 3,048,186
$4,564,691 34,564,691

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.

24



MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Property Taxes
Shared Revenue
Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee Salaries
Maintenance of Effort
Depreciation
Other

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Income
Non-Operating Gains
Depreciation on Fixed Assets Acquired by Grant
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING

Medical
Care
Facility Total
$5,913,111 $5,913,111
365,429 365,429
157,841 157,841
337,112 337,112
6,773,493 6,773,493
3,758,495 3,758,495
142,394 142,394
0 0]
2,744 437 2,744 437
6,645,326 6,645,326
128,167 128,167
34,651 - 34,651
0 0
0 0
0
0 0
162,818 162,818
2,885,368 2,885,368
0
$3,048,186 $3,048,186

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from residents and third-party payors

Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Proportionate share receipts
Property tax receipts

Operating Activities

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions (withdrawals)
Net Cash Provided for by Non-Financing
Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
Sale (purchase) of assets limited as to use
Deposits to Deferred Compensation Plan
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from local Grant
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
& Cash Equivaients

Cash & Cash Equivalents, Oct. 1

Cash & Cash Equivalents, Sept. 30

Medical
Care
Facility Total
$5,932,705 $5,932,705
(5,910,089) (5,910,089)

157,841 157,841
365,429 365,429

545 886 545,886

814 814

814 814

34,651 34,651
409,293 409,293

0 0

443 944 443,944

0 0

(991,399) (991,399)
(991,399) (991,399)
(755) (755)

356,254 356,254
$355,499 $355,499

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Net Assets
Component Units
September 30, 2003

ASSETS
Current
Cash and Investments
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Property Taxes Receivabie
Inventories
Due From Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Compensation Plan Assets
Other Assets
Construction in Progress
Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Compensated Absences
Non-Current
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Non-Current

Total Liabilities

NETS ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets-- Net of Related Debt
Restricted for
Contributed Capital
Unreserved
TES Litigation
Short Term Disability
Sick Leave
Gifts and Bequests
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Library Road Total
Commission Component
Units

09/30/03 09/30/03 09/30/03
$524,541 $310,520 $835,061
0 236,651 236,651
78,145 940,834 1,018,979
654 0 654
0 353,807 353,807
0 0 0
0 92,172 92,172
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,650,164 36,955,290 38,605,454
(1,008,134)  (18,015,082) (19,023,216)
1,245,370 20,874,192 22,119,562
90,295 359,973 450,268
17,528 365,870 383,398
107,823 725,843 833,666
642,030 18,583,932 19,225,962
12,414 1,564,417 1,576,831
15,000 0 15,000
14,237 0 14,237
5,000 0 5,000
123,061 0 123,061
325,805 0 325,805
1,137,547 20,148,349 21,285,896

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Investments

Accounts Receivable

Property Taxes Receivable
Inventories

Due From Other Funds

Prepaid Expenses

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets
Other Assets

Construction in Progress
Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Compensated Absences

Total Assets

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance

Contributed Capital
Capital Projects

TES Litigation

Short Term Disability
Sick Leave
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balance

September 30, 2003

Library Road Total
Commission
09/30/03 09/30/03 09/30/03

$524,541 $310,520 $835,061
236,651 236,651

78,145 940,834 1,018,979
654 654
353,807 353,807

0

92,172 92,172

0

0

0

0
0 0
603,340 1,933,084 2,537,324
69,872 206,223 276,095
20,423 34,713 55,136
90,295 240,936 331,231
123,061 353,807 476,868
12,414 12,414
15,000 15,000
14,237 14,237
5,000 5,000
343,333 1,339,241 1,682,574
513,045 1,693,048 2,206,093
$603,340 $1,933,984 $2,537,324

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY
MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The County Board of Commissioners, a seven member group, is the level of government which has
governance responsibilities over all activities related to the county government jurisdiction of Manistee
County. The Board receives funding from local, state and federal government sources and must comply
with the requirements of these funding source entities. However, the Board is not included in any other
governmental "reporting entity” since board members are elected by the public and have decision making
authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and
primary accountability for fiscal matters.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 "The Financial Reporting Entity", these financial statements present
Manistee County (primary government) and its component units. The criteria established by the GASB for
determining the reporting entity includes:

a) oversight responsibility
b) fiscal dependency
¢) whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were included.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The method of reporting financial data of component units in a
column separate from the financial data of the primary government is referred to as discrete presentation.

The component unit should be included in the reporting entity financial statements using the blending
method in either of the following circumstances: a) The component unit's governing body of the primary
unit and b) the component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely to the primary government or
otherwise exclusively, or aimost exclusively, benefits the primary government even though it does not
provide services directly to it. The activities have been measured by the standards listed above with the
following units being reported as component units with condensed financial statements for those which are
discreetly presented.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

Medical Care Facility

This a component unit of government of the County and has been included as such. This unit of
government is controiled by an independent board which includes two county appointees and one state
appointee. No money, other than MOE, is derived from the County and the majority comes from billings
and fees paid by State and local agencies. The Medical Care Facility board cannot borrow money or levy
taxes without the approval of the County. The information is taken from the year ending September 30,
2003 audited financial statements audited by other auditors which can be seen at the Manistee County
Treasurer's Office.
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Manistee Area 9-1-1/Central Dispatch

This is a component unit of government of the County and has been included as a blended presentation.
This unit serves multiple government and private agencies while deriving no financial support directly from
other agencies. The reasons for the blended presentation is that while this unit is neither economically
dependent nor is it exclusively used by County government, it provides a service which would otherwise be
required by the primary government. The unit can neither levy a tax or borrow funds without County
approval. The information is taken from the September 30, 2003 year end audited financial statements
and can be seen at the Manistee County Treasurer's Office.

Manistee County Building Authority

This is a component unit of government of the County and has been included here as such. However, all
expenses to include interest and principal are costs to the County per se and as such are not reported a
second time. Therefore, the only reportable amounts which concern this unit are transfers

in and out which are negated when the units are combined. See also notes on Long Term Debt.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Manistee County Library

The Library is a component unit of County government. It is governed by a five member board . The
Library prepares its financial statements on the modified accrual basis. There is no reporting on the fixed
asset group of accounts. In accordance with Michigan Department of Treasury Letter, the Library is
reported as a discreet presentation. The information is taken from the September 30, 2003 year end
audited financial statements audited by other auditors which can be seen at the Manistee County
Treasurer's Office.

Condensed Balance Sheet

Assets ' $ 603,340
Total Assets $ 603,340

Liabilities $ 90,295
Fund Balance $513,045
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 603,340

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues $ 1,183,947
Current Expenditures $1,275,389
Loss $ 91442

Manistee County Road Commission

The County Road Commission, which is established pursuant to county road law (MCL 224.1), is
governed by an appointed three member Board of County Road Commissioners. The Road Commission
may not issue debt or levy a tax without approval of the County Board of Commissioners. If approval is
granted, Road Commission taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the County, as approved by the
county electors, and would be included as part of the County's total tax levy as well as reported in the
County Road Fund. The information is taken from the September 30, 2003 year end audited financial
statements audited by other auditors which can be seen at the Manistee County Treasurer's Office.
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Condensed Balance Sheet

Assets $ 1,933,984
Property Plant & Equipment (Net) 18,940,208

Total Assets $20,874 192
Current Liabilities $ 240,936
Bonds and Other Long Term Liabilities 484 907
Fund Balance 20,148,349

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $20.874,192

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues $ 5,254677
Current Expenditures 3,819,992
Depreciation/Retirements 1,276,321
Total Expenditures $ 5,096,313
Excess Revenue $ 158,364

Manistee County Transportation, Inc.

This entity is set up as and operated as an independent not-for-profit corporation, incorporated in the State
of Michigan. In addition, there is a total separation of fiscal control or responsibility by Manistee County
and the Governing board operates as an independent entity. The services provided do not fit into the
category of "exclusively” used by the primary government. This entity is therefore being excluded based
on the above. ,

Manistee/Blacker Airport Authority

The county was a member of a joint venture in the Manistee/Blacker Airport Authority. This is, however,
an independent authority which is supported through fees and rents as well as support from Manistee
County.

The number of units participating is not limited, but rather is set up under Act 206 of the Public Acts of
1857. No control is exercised by the County over the Airport Authority. Each unit appoints two members
with three additional members coming at large. The Advisory Board is responsible for adopting an annual
budget. The following financial information was obtained from the audited financial statements of the
Manistee/Blacker Airport for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.

Condensed Baiance Sheet

Assets

Current Assets $ (2,560)

Accounts Receivable 17,750
Total Assets 27.816

Liabilities 8,448

Fund Balance 19.368

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $27.816

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenue 164,883
Expenditures 152,550
Net Revenue <loss> 12,333
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The County's portion paid to the Manistee/Blacker Airport Authority was $70,000 for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2003.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges
for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment: and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Revenues and Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis using the economic resources
measurement focus. Based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, as amended, the County has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant
proncuncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including those issued after
November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of Accounting refers to how revenue and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the account
and reported in the financial statements. The basis of accounting, as required under generally accepted
accounting principles, varies for each fund.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both
measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days fo the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and
judgements are recorded only when payment is due.
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General, special revenue, debt service, capital projects and trust and agency funds should be accounted
for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenue s recognized in the accounting period in which it becomes available and measurable.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund fiability is incurred, if
measurable.

Medical Care Facility

The accounting polices of the Facility conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to governmental units. Because the Facility provides a service to citizens
that is financed primarily by user charges, the accounts of the Facility are accounted for as an Enterprise
Fund.

Revenues and Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis using the economic resources
measurement focus. Based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, as amended, the Authority has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including those issued after
November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

The Medical Care Facility audit report, prepared by other auditors, was not presented in accordance with
GASB 34, however due to the nature of the presentation there was no materially significant deficiency in
incorporating the audit report into this presentation.

Manistee County Library

The Library reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the Library’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
accounted for in another fund.

The capital projects fund accounts for the financial resources to be used for the acqu9isition of
major capital facilities.

Manistee County

The governmental fund accounting policies of Manistee County Board conform to generally accepted
accounting principles and include the following fund types:

1. Government Fund Types use modified accrual basis and include -

The General Funds account for fiscal resources in use for general types of operations. The
general fund is a budgeted fund and any fund balances are considered as resources available for
use. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes and state and federal distributions,
grants and other intergovernmental revenues.

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific governmental revenues requiring separate
accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action. These funds are
employed to maintain integrity for the various sources of funds.

The Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal and interest recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group.
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2. Fiduciary fund types include -

The Trust and Agency Fund is unbudgeted and accounts for activities within those areas wherein
the County is operating in either a trust or agency status. These funds have no equity, assets are
equal to liabilities, and do not include revenues and expenditures for general operations of the
County.

3. Proprietary fund types include -

The Enterprise Funds use the full accrual basis for operations: (a) that are financed and operated
in @ manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on
a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the County or to other governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis. The tax revolving fund contains those fund balances
designated for specific use by the Board in accordance with resolutions passed during the years.

Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the
financial statements. Accordingly, upon settiement, actual resuits may differ from estimated amounts.

Investments.

The County uses the Fair Market Value valuation for all investments. Any adjustments to the value of the
investments not related to cash differences but rather to a subsequent valuation change during the current
year was entered as unrecognized gain or loss.

Budgeting and Fund Deficit

Prior to September 30th, the board adopts a proposed general fund operating budget for the twelve
months beginning October 1%. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them. Budgets are adopted on a activity basis, although line item data is provided in the accounts for
more effective management control. Amendments to the general fund budget are made as necessary
and are properly approved by the board.

C. INVESTMENTS

Act 217, PA 1982, as amended authorizes the County to deposit and invest in the following:
a) Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of
the United States.
b) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a financial
institution, but only if the financial institution is eligible to be a depository of funds belonging to the
state under a law or rule of this state or the United States.
c) Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the 2 highest classifications established
by not less than 2 standard rating services and that matures not more than 270 days after the
date of purchase.
d) Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in subdivision (a).
e) Bankers' acceptances of United States banks.
f) Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of purchase are rated
as investment grade by not less than 1 standard rating service.
g) Mutual funds registered under the investment company act of 1940, title | of chapter 686, 54
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Stat. 789, 15 USC 80a-1 to 80a-3 and 80a-4 to 80a-64, with authority to purchase only investment
vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public corporation. However, a mutual fund is not
disqualified as a permissible investment solely by reason of either of the following:
i) The purchase of securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis.
i) The ability to lend portfolio securities as long as the mutual fund receives collateral at
all times equal to at least 100% of the value of the securities loaned.
iy The limited ability to borrow and pledge a like portion of the portfolio's assets for
temporary or emergency purposes.
h) Obligations described in subdivisions (a) through (g) if purchased through an interlocal
agreement under the urban cooperation act of 1967.
i) Investment pools organized under the surpius funds investment pool act, 1982 PA 367.
j) The investment pools organized under the local government investment pool act,
1985 PA 121.

D. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Primary Government

For purposes of this presentation, management has determined that cash equivalents consist of those
items which will become cash within 90 days of the statement date. Investments are all in Certificates of
Deposit and short term government bonds. Investments of the County are valued at the lower of cost or
market at the balance sheet date. All deposits are held in the name of the County. The relative risk of
these items of cash are:

Carrying
Value Bank Balance
Insured $ 200,000 $ 200,000
Uninsured 1,150,011 1,201,056
Total Cash $1,350,011 $1,401,056

Deposits are carried at cost. Deposits are in three financial institutions in the name of the County
Treasurer.

There is $575,062 invested in Certificates of Deposit. Fair Market value is approximately the same as
face value.

There is a bearer bond recorded with a cost of $82,068 and a fair market value as of $1,033,186 as of
September 30, 2003.

The Government Investment Pool Funds for the primary government are with Huntington Bank and
Security National Bank. The nature of the mutual funds, bond funds, and investment pools does not allow
for risk categorization, which is in accordance with GASB Statement No. 3.

Investment Pools - Class $ 84,307
- Cadre 57,476
- Money Market 200,000

The balance of the cash is in sweep accounts which are the same as checking.
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Medical Care Facility
The Medical Care Facility's deposits and investments are composed of the following:

Assets
Current Limited as
Assets to Use (3) Total
September 30, 2003:
Cash:
Petty cash $ 395 $ $ 395
On deposit with County Treasurer (1) 23,658 324,229 347,887
On deposit with banks (2) 7.217 1,886,520 1,893,737
Total cash ] 31,270 $2,210.749 $2.242 019

(I) Cash - County - These funds are under the control of the County Treasurer,
who deposits these funds with a bank. It is impractical to determine the
amount covered by federal depository insurance as these funds are only a
portion of the entire County deposits. However, all available insurance has been taken
by the County and none remains.

(2) Cash - Bank - The deposits are reflected in the accounts of the bank (without
recognition of checks written but not yet cleared or of deposits in transit) at
$1,893,737 and $2,302,216 at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The federal
depository insurance coverage pertains to all the deposits of the county; hence, the
specific coverage pertaining to the Facility's deposits is not determinable.

(3) Assets Limited as to Use - This cash is limited to the following uses:

2003
By Manistee County Family Independence Agency Board
for future capital purchases $ 1,796,531
for funded compensated absences 362,964
By donors for various restricted future expenditures 51,254
Total $2210,749

911/Central Dispatch

911/Central Dispatch Cash Investments September 30, 2003.

Per Bank Carrying Value
Insured 3 100,000 $ 100,000
Uninsured 514,984 517.312
Total 614,984 617,312

Manistee County Library

At year end, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits, including certificates of deposit of $200,942
were $523,991 and the bank balance was $619,731 of which $352,241 was covered by federal depository
insurance and $267,490 was uninsured and uncollateralized. The Library has $550 in petty cash on hand.
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Manistee County Road Commission

The Road Commission’s deposits and investments at September 30, 2003 are included on the balance

sheet under the following classifications:

Balance Sheet Classification

Cash and
Cash
Equivalents Investments Totals
Deposit - Bank $ 310,420 3 - $ 310,420
Investments - Bank 0 236.651 236,651
Total 310,420 236,651 547,071
Petty Cash 100 0 100
$ 310,520 $ 236.651 $ 547171

Deposits

At September 30, 2003, the book value of the Road Commission’s deposits was $310,520 with a
corresponding bank balance of $420,324. Qualifying deposits are insured by Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to $100,000. Of the bank’s balance, approximately $313,640 is insured
(credit risk category #1) and the remaining $106,684 is uninsured and uncoilateralized (credit risk

category #2)

The County Road commission’s deposits are in accordance with statutory authority.

Investments are categorized in these three categories of risk:

Category 1 - Insured and registered, or securities held by the Road Commission or its

agent in the Road Commissions name.

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust

department or agent in the Road Commission’s name.

Category 3 - uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its
trust department or agent, but not in the Road Commission’s name

Investment not subject to categorization:
Public Funds Investment Trust
Carrying and Fair Value $ 104,840
National City Bank - Business Indexed
investment Account

Carrying and Fair Value 27,465

Cadre Securities - Cash Management Funds
Carrying and Fair Value 104,346
Total Investments $ 236,651

E. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Medical Care Facility has accounts receivable as follows:

Patient receivables $ 763,488

Less allowances for uncollectible accounts (40,000)
Patient accounts receivable, net $ 723,488
Accounts receivable - other 22,130
Total accounts receivable $ 745618
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F. PROPERTY TAXES

The County property tax is levied on each December 1% on the taxable value of property located in
Manistee County as of the preceding December 31 .

Although Manistee County's ad valorem tax is levied and collectible on December 1, property tax revenues
are considered available when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period.

The State Equalized Value (SEV) and taxable values are $1,074,508,674 and $737,371,742 respectively.
The millage for the current year is:

County operating 5.1848
County Library 9873
Medical Care 4940
911 9873
Jail bond 1500

These amounts are recognized in the respective General Fund and special revenue funds. Property tax
revenues are recognized in the subsequent year when budgeted, therefor the receivabie is offset by
deferred revenue.

G. EMPLOYEE'S DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The County and the Road Commission offers it's employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with IRC Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of
their current salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to the employees until
termination, retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency.

Effective January 1, 1997, the County adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans. This statement requires plans that have established a qualified third party trust for their plan to
remove the plan assets and related liability from the balance sheet of the County since the plan assets
would no longer be subject to the general creditors of the County. Manistee County maintains no trust
involvement in these plans.

H. RETIREMENT SYSTEM - MERS OPERATED

Manistee County employees including those component units consisting of the Library and the Medical
Care Facility, are covered under the Manistee County retirement program.

Plan Description

Manistee County participates in the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS), a public

employer and employee retirement system organized pursuant to Section 12a of Act No 156, Public Acts

of 1951, (MSA 5.333(a); MCLA 46, 12a), as amended, State of Michigan. Substantially all employees are
covered by the MERS retirement system. There is no mandatory retirement.

The Manistee County Pension Plan which is a multiple employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
all full-time and part-time employees of the County who have completed six months of service and elect to
receive coverage. The plan provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits, to plan
members and their beneficiaries. At December 31, 2000, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation,
membership consisted of 92 retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and 33 terminated
employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them, and 245 current active employees. The plan
does not issue a separate financial report specifically for each Facility.

All Required Contributions were made

40



The cost and market value of the retirement fund investment for the total MERS system at December 31,
2002 are disclosed in the annual financial statements of the Michigan Municipal Employees' Retirement
System. Although an actuarial study is performed annually for Manistee County, the actuarial report does
not break out all required facility data necessary for proper disclosure. All disclosures required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 5 with respect to pension data have not been
incfuded in these financial statements

Analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, pension benefit obligation, and the
unfunded pension benefit obligation in isolation can be misleading. Expressing the net assets available
for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation provides one indication of the plan's funded
status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of the percentage over time indicates whether the system is
becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the plan.
The unfunded pension benefit obligation and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation.
Expressing the unfunded pension benefit obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll provides an
approximate adjustment for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the progress being made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the
stronger the plan.

Manistee County Road Commission Employees’ Retirement System

Manistee County Road Commission participates in a defined benefit retirement plan administered by the
Municipal Employee’s retirement System (MERS). The plan covers substantially all full time employees.
The Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan (MERS) is a multiple-employer statewide public
employee retirement plan created by the State of Michigan to provide retirement, survivor and disability
benefits, on a voluntary basis to the State’s local government employees in the most efficient and effective
manner possible. As such, MERS is a non-profit entity which has the responsibility of administering the
law in accordance with the expressed intent of the Legislature and bears a fiduciary obligation to the State
of Michigan, the taxpayers and the public employees who are its beneficiaries.

The passage of HB-5525/Act No. 220, with enactment on May 28, 1996, allowed the members of MERS
to vote on and determine is MERS should become an independent pubiic corporation. The vote resulted in
approval to become independent of State control and MERS began to operate as an independent public
corporation effective August 15, 1996. MERS issues a financial report, available to the pubiic, that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the system. A copy of the report
may be obtained by writing the MERS at 447 N. Canal Road, Lansing, Michigan 49817.

All full time County Road union and administrative employees are eligible to participate in the system.
Benefits vest after ten years of service. Employees who retire at or after age 60 with 10 years credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2.5
percent of the member’s 5-year final average compensation. Effective July 1, 1999 the plan was changed
to MERS F55 so that employees with at least 30 years of service and are age 55 can retire with full
benefits. The system also provides death and disability benefits which are established by State Statute.

Participating County Road employees are not required to contribute to the system. The County Road
commission is required to contribute the amount necessary to fund the Michigan Municipal Employees
Retirement System using the actuarial basis specified by statute

Actuarial Accrued Liability - the actuarial liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the
plan as of December 31, 2002. Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the investment of
present and future assets of 8.0%, (a) inflation, and (b) additional projected salary increases of 0.0% to
4.2% per year, depending on age, attributable to seniority/merit and (c) the assumption that benefits will
increase 2.5% annually after retirement.

All entries are based on the actuarial methods and assumption that were used in the December 31, 2002
actuarial valuation to determine the annual employer contribution amounts. The entry age normal
actuarial method was used to determine the entries at disclosure.



GASB 25 Information as of 12/31/02

Actuarial Accrued Liability:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits $ 3,884,313
Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits 242,764

Current employees:
Accumulated employee contributions

Including allocated investment income 7,525
Employer financed 3,261,846
Total Actuarial accrued liability 7,396,448

Net Assets Available for Benefits, at actuarial value
(Market value is 2,507,262) 3,454 256
Unfunded (over funded) actuarial accrued liability $ 3942192

GASB 27 Information as of 12/31/02

Fiscal year beginning January 1, 2004
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 357,500
Amortization factor used 0.053632

Contributions Required and Contributions Made:

MERS funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that,
expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. The normal cost and amortization payment for fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
were determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method. Unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities, if any, were amortized as a level percent of payroll over a period of 30 years. The following table
provides a schedule of contribution amounts and percentages for recent years.

Three Year mend Information for FASB Statement No.27

Year Annual Percentage Net
Ended Pension of APC Pension
Dec 31 Cost of (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/00 $ 324772 100% $ -0-
12/31/01 $ 312,926 100% $ -0-
09/30/02 $ 186,226 100% $ -0-
09/30/03 $ 351,750 100% $ -0-
Required Supplementary Information for GASB Statement No.27
UAAL as
a Percent
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial  Underfunded of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll  Payroll

12/31/00 $3,180,274  $5,910,253 $2,729,979 54% $1,533,193 178%
12/31/01 $3,465,264  $6,953,429 $3448,165 50% $1,563,330 223%

12/31/02 $3,454,256  $7,396,448 $3942256 53% $1,528,920 258%



|. LONG TERM DEBT

Balances Due on Notes and Bonds are as follows:

Date Principal Interest
Jail Bond 2003 55,000 7.625% less credit
2004 55,000 *
2005 55,000 “
2006 55,000 !

Bonds and notes payable at September 30, 2003 are composed of the following individual issues:
Balance Due

09/30/03
General Obligation Debt
Jail Bond dated 1987
Original Amount: $1,100,000
Annual Instaliments: $25,000 to $95,000
Final Maturity: May 1, 2007
Interest Rate: 4.400% to 7.625% 220,000

Instaliment Purchase Contract:

Original amount $542,400

Final maturity: Oct. 1, 2007

Interest rate: 5.43% 282,000

Building Authority Bonds
Series 1999
Original amount $1,375,000
Annual principal installments $25,000 to $105,000
Final maturity 2024
Interest rate 5.25% to 6.00% $1,375,000

Series 2000
Original amount $825,000
Annual principal installments $20,000 to $65,000
Final maturity 2024
Interest rate 5.25% to 5.90% $825,000

911 Long Term Debt

The Manistee County 9-1-1/Central Dispatch has two long term debt notes payable to the
County of Manistee. The funds were used to built the new Central Dispatch addition. An
agreement was entered between Manistee County 9-1-1/Central Dispatch and the County
of Manistee were the 9-1-1 will make annual installments on note whose original value
was $450,000.

The data for the long term debt is as follows:

Creditor County of Manistee

Amount $450,000 ($337,282 on 6/1/98 and $112,718 on 7/23/98)
Interest Rate  5.43%

Term: 10 Years
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The remaining principal and interest payments are as follows:

Year Principal Interest
2003 $45,000 $12,218
2004 $45,000 $9,774
2005 $45,000 $ 7,331
2006 $45,000 $ 4,887
2007 $45,000 $2,444

The second note payable is to Manistee County and is for the repayment of legal fees incurred for
the Filer/TES litigation. The 9-1-1 has agreed to pay $26,729.00 in nine annual installments of
$2969.89 each. There is no interest charge for the note.

The third liability is a capital lease for the Computer Aided Dispatch equipment. The fair market
value at delivery time was $193,633 and the lease is for four annual installments. The first
payment of $53,690 was paid during the year, which left three subsequent annual payments of
$53,540 each.

Interest Principal Beginning  Additions Ending  Due Within
Rate Matures Balance (Reductions) Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Gen Ob Debt 1987 various 05/01/07 275,000 (55,000) 220,000 55,000
Inst Purch Cont 543  10/01/07 327,400 (45,000) 282,000 45,000
Building 1999 various 2024 1,235,000 1,235,000 25,000
Building 2000 various 2024 755,000 755,000 20,000
Total Govmntl Activities 2,682,400 (100,000) 2,492,000 145,000
911/Central Dispatch 5.43 2007 270,000 (45,000) 225,000 45,000

Manistee County Road Commission

The Following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions for the Road Commission for the
year ended September 30, 2003

Long-Term debt at October 1, 2002

Adjustments to recognize change in
Accumulated sick leave and vacation

At September 30, 2003

Debt Retired during current year
Long Term Debt at 09/30/03

MDOT Accumulated
SIB Sick Leave &
Loan Vacation Total
$470,734 $139,642 $610,376
0 (35,352) (35,352)
(114.458) 0 (114,458)
$356,276 104,290 $460,566

During 1999 the Manistee County Road Commissicn entered into a general loan contract with
MDOT and received loan proceeds of $800,000 in the form of a State Infrastructure Bank Loan
(SIB). The funds had to be used for a pre-approved purpose namely work Coates Highway in
Manistee County. Repayment requirements consist of an annual payment of $133,288, which
includes interest at an annual rate of 4%. The final payment is due 2006.

Debt Service Requirements:

2004 2005 2006 Total
Principal $119,037 $123,798 $113,441 $356,276
Interest 14,251 9,490 4.538 28,279
$133,288 $133,288 $117,979 $384,555
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The accumulated vacation and sick leave is not subject to an annual amortization calcuiation
because it will become due and payable in varying amounts from year to year as employees
terminate their employment with the Manistee County Road Commission

J. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The primary government has no material contingent liabilities as of the date of this report.

The Manistee Country Road Commission contracts with the State of Michigan to perform state highway
maintenance functions for the State. The cost of the maintenance is then billed to the State of Michigan
who reimburses the Manistee County Road Commission for the costs incurred. These costs
reimbursements contract expenditures are subject to audit at some future date by the State of Michigan.
The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the State of Michigan cannot be
determined until the State completes its annual audit of its maintenance agreement with the Manistee
County Road Commission. The audit adjustment is accounted for as an adjustment of the current years
expenditures.

The Manistee County Road Commission is party to various legal proceedings incidental to its operations.
Certain claims, suits and complaints arising in the ordinary course of operations have been filed against
the Road Commission. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, all such matters are adequately
covered by insurance or, if not so covered, are without merit or are in a very preliminary state, and it is not
possible to currently assess the probability of an unfavorable outcome.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES, SICK LEAVE, VACATIONS AND ACCRUED/PREPAID SALARIES.

Primary Government:

Vacation and Sick Leave is earned on a monthly basis with excess sick leave available to be paid. The
totals of compensated absences are computed at current wage rates and include the following:

Sick Pay Vacation Pay  Personal

Courthouse $ 94778 $ 43,836 $ 24,032
Sheriff Department 43,732 28,001 8,977
911 Dispatch 0 5,162 4,076
Total $ 138,510 $ 76,999 $37,085

Medical Care Facility Compensated Absences $702,208
Manistee County Library Termination Benefits $22,528

No accruals or prepaids have been made for these salaries and wages as the net effect is minimal and
the change to accrual accounting further minimizes the effect.

Employees earn one day of sick leave credit for each month of service, with a maximum accumulation of
110 days. All employees during their first year of employment earn vacation using their date of hire. After
completing one year all employees accrue vacation benefits which are to be used for vacation during the
next succeeding calendar year. Vacation time must be used before the end of the succeeding calendar
year. Vacation time does not accumuiate and the employee are not paid for days not used.

Employees must contact their immediate supervisor at least one hour prior to their scheduled shift if
requesting a sick day. Employees may be required to present a doctor’s release for sick leave lasting
three of more days, or if a specific pattern or abuse of the sick leave policy develops.

Vacation time, with regards to the sheriff's department, shall be taken in increments of five days or less,
unless other arrangements have been made in advance. Requests must be submitted to the sheriff at
least 10 days prior to the requested days off. No more than one employee in each designated area can be
away on vacation at one time.
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Employees who quit and provide two weeks written notice are entitled to payment at their straight-time
hourly rate for their accrued, but unused vacation days.

Effective January 1, 1996 all employees with an existing bank of sick time will have the option, during the
term of the existing contract, of converting an employer specified number of accumulated sick time hours
to cash at the discounted rate of 85% value. Also, each eligible employee will receive five annual personal
days which shall not accumulate from year to year. The employer will pay in January of the following year
for up to three days of unused personal time.

Manistee County 911/Central Dispatch

There are no compensated absences to the extent that sick pay is accrued and payable upon retirement.
The total accrued and payable for empioyees on the Manistee County 9-1-1/Central Dispatch is $9,238. In
addition, the Undersherrif indicated that one employee who was previously employed by the Sheriff's
Department has accumulated 720 hours of sick time which, while perhaps a contingent liability is a county
liability from past employment.

Manistee County Library

Manistee County Library accounts for accrued employee sick leave in it's long-term debt account group.
As of September 30, 2003 the accrual is $22,528.

Manistee Country Road Commission

The total accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay liability of the Manistee County Road Commission at
September 30, 2003 was $128,631. This amount was determined to be a long-term liability in its entirety
and is therefore reflected as a non-current liability on the government-wide statements. A liability for these
amounts is only reported in the governmental funds for known terminations as of year end.

County Road Commission employees earn vacation and personal leave in varying amounts depending on
the number of years of service. Accumulated vacation may not exceed the total earned for any given year
per the union contract. Non-union empioyees are also subject to the vacation provisions embodied in the
union contract. Unpaid vacation and personal leave at September 30, 2003 amounted to $43,138.

Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of one day for each month of service with accumulation not to
exceed 170 days. The policy also provides that employees who separate from employment with the Road
Commission will be paid for their accumulated leave up to a maximum of sixty (60) days. Unpaid sick
leave at September 30, 2003 amounted to $85,493.

Effective December 1, 1994 the above sick leave program was replaced with one which each full time
employee shail be given sixty-four to seventy-two hours of short-term leave annually which may be used
through out a given fiscal year. In the first pay period of December each year ail unused time shall be
paid. There are no provisions to accumulate this time. The former plan is still in effect and employees will
retain those benefits. Upon retirement the accumulated sick leave will be paid up to a maximum of sixty
days. This liability will decrease as the years progress.

L. ENCUMBRANCES
The County Does not formally record encumbrances in the accounting records.
M. LITIGATION

In 1996, TES Filer City Station (Tondu) a Manistee County taxpayer, filed a petition with the Michigan Tax
Tribunal contesting the 1993-1996 assessed value. State equalized value and taxable value of it's
industrial location in Filer Township, Manistee County, Michigan. [f this appeal is successful, alt of the
taxing jurisdictions which benefit from tax dollars generated by Tondu will be required to pay back these
funds and incur a loss of future revenue for periods subsequent to 1996. The amount of the payback for
the periods prior to or subsequent to 1996 have not been determined and the Tribunal Judge as not yet
made a ruling in this case.
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In connection with the normal conduct of its affairs, the County is involved in various other claims and
litigations. It is expected that the final resolution of these matters will not materially affect the financial
statement of the County.

N. RISK FINANCING AND RELATED INSURANCE ISSUES

Primary Government:

The local unit is a member of the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority. As a member of the
authority, the Local Unit is partially self-insured for general and auto liability, motor vehicle physical
damage and property loss claims. Under most circumstances, the municipality’s maximum loss per
occurrence is limited as follows:
Maximum Retention
Per Occurrence

75,000

15,000 per unit

30,000 per occurrence

100,000(after 10% to member)

Type of Risk
General Liability

Auto Physical Damage
Auto Physical Damage
Property Coverage

Medical Care Facility:

The Facility is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,
employee injuries, as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The Facility has purchased
commercial insurance for malpractice and general liability claims, workers' compensation and employee
medical benefit claims. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the
amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The Facility is insured against potential professional liability claims under an occurrence-basis policy,
whereby all claims resulting from incidents that occur during the policy period are covered up to insured
limits, regardless of when the claims are reported to the insurance carrier. There are no known
outstanding or pending claims at September 30, 2003 and September 30, 2002.

O. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets for the primary government and blended units, Medical Care Facility and 911/Central
Dispatch, are listed below:

Medical Care Facility:

2003
Building and improvements $1,220,416
Equipment 1,296,629
Construction in progress 935,757
Total 3,452,799
Less accumulated depreciation 1,904,285
Net 1,548,514
Depreciation expense aggregated $90,932
911/Central Dispatch
2002 additions deletions 2003
Buildings $ 3,000 0 0 3,000
Equipment $ 461,244 273261 12,366 $722.139
Total 464,244 273,261 12,366 725,139
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings $ 500 77 0 577
Equipment $ 220,463 44,443 0 $264,906
Total 220,963 44,520 0 265,483
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Primary Government

Equipment $76,446 7,541 $ 83,987
Vehicles 448,886 0 0 448,886
Miscellaneous 413,610 52,454 245,000* 221,064
Buildings 6,266,359 2,655,012 277,001* 8,644,370
Land 7,265,015 59,714

Total $7,107,138 2,715,007 522,001 $9,458,020

Less Accumulated Depreciation for

Equipment $28,077 11,403 $ 39,480
Vehicles 272,378 83,347 355,725
Miscellaneous 175,829 91,860 96,875 170,814
Buildings 2,730,875 106,978 193,016* 2,644,837
Land 7,265,015 0

Total $3.207.159 293,588 289,891 $3,210,856

*moved to Manistee Blacker Airport Authority

All fixed assets are based on historical cost for all assets with a cost of $5,000 or more. The County
commission passed a resolution to record all assets with values in excess of $5,000.

Property, piant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings

Building Improvements
Water and Sewer Lines
Roads

Vehicles

Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

Manistee County Road Commission

Fixed Assets
Land and
improvements
Buildings
infrastructure
Equipment:

Road

Shop

Office

Engineers
Yard and Storage
Depletable Assets

Total

Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings
Infrastructure
Equipment:
Road
Shop
Office
Engineers
Yard and Storage
Total

Net Fixed Assets

40 to 60 years
15 to 30 years
50 to 75 years
10 to 30 years

3to 5years

5t0 7 years

3to 7 years
Balance Balance
10/01/02 Additions Deletions 09/30/03
$ 239,977 $ 0 3 0 $ 239,977
1,678,577 1,266 0 1,679,823
25,928,482 1,384,874 0 27,313,356
6,030,236 457,315 5,293 6,482,258
175,088 18,319 0 193,407
96,233 0 0 96,233
100,547 1,925 0 102,472
823,699 0 0 823,699
24,065 0 0 24,065
35,096,884 1,863,699 5293 36,955,290
899,383 40,652 0 940,035
9,684,197 1,276,321 0 10,960,518
5,065,677 398,150 0 5,458,534
113,446 5,319 0 118,765
63,343 5,891 0 69,234
66 339 9,089 0 75,428
341,919 50,649 0 392,568
16,234,304 1,786,071 5,293 18,015,082
$18,862,580 $ 77,628 $ 0 $18,940,208
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All fixed assets are based on historical cost for all assets.Property, plant and equipment is depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings 40 to 60 years
Building Improvements 15 to 30 years
Infrastructure 51to 10 years
Equipment 10 to 30 years
Vehicles 3 to 20 years

P. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Primary Government;
The County does not offer post employment benefits.

The Road Commission provides post retirement health care benefits to all employees who retire from the
Road Commission after July 1, 1985. For employees retiring between the ages of 55 and 65 the Road
Commission will pay $100 per month. At age 65, or if retirement occurs on or after age 65 the monthly
contribution will be $60. During 2003 the Road Commission funded approximately $5,800 in post
employment health care benefits for retired employees and 14 former employees were eligible.

Q. GENERAL FUND DEFERRED REVENUE
The financial statement presentation includes a General Fund deferred revenue in the amount of

$886,160. The amount is equal to one quarter (three months) of the annual taxes collected which will
subsequently be expended during the final three months of the calendar year.

R. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

PA 621 of 1978, section 18(1), as amended, provides that a local unit shall not incur expenditures in
excess of the amount appropriated. During the Year, the County incurred expenditures in certain
budgeted funds which were in excess of the amount appropriated.

Budget Actual
Budgeted Item : Appropriation Expenditures Variance
General Fund
Transfers Out 569,362 672,681 (103,319)

The transfer out excess expenditure is primarily due to Child Care costs mandated by the court system.
All special revenue funds were not budgeted for the fiscal year and therefore not in compliance.
S. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Effective October 1, 2002 the County and its component units implemented the provision of Govermental
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Managament’s
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34). Changes to the financial
statements as a resuit of GASB No. 34 are as follows:
A management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) section providing analysis of the entities overall
financial position and results of operations has been included.

Government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities)
prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the entity’s activities have been provided.

Capital assets in the Statement of Net Assets include infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, etc) not
previously accounted for in the Road Commission section of the report as well as other capital assets
that were previously accounted for in the General Fixed Asset Account Group. In addition, the
government activities column includes bonds and other long-term obligations previously reported in
the General long-Term Debt Account Group. .
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T. MANISTEE COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - RESTATEMENT OF
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

The Road Commission changed its policy and has elected to recognize the September motor vehicle highway
funds as areceivable/revenue in the year earned rather than when received. The beginning fund balance has
bee adjusted as follows:

Fund Balance, previously stated, September 30, 2002 $1,456,816
Prior period adjustment to recognized receivabie for State of

Michigan for September 2002 moter vehicle highway funds 580,964
Fund Balance, as restate, September 30, 2002 $1,737,780
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DAVID E. WILSON, CPA, PC (231) 276-7668
P.O. Box 205 Fax: (231) 276-7687
3015 M-137 E-mail:david.wilson@davidwilsoncpa.com
Interlochen, MI 49643

To the Manistee County Board
Manistee County
Manistee, Ml

We have audited the combined financial statements of Manistee County for the year ended
September 30, 2003. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
combined financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedules, as listed in the
table of contents, are presented for purposes of the additional analysis and are not a required
part of the combined financials statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the combined financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial statements
taken as a whole.

i)c e el con
interlochen, MI
November 20, 2003
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance
Budget Favorable
Approved Amended Actual (Unfavorable)
TAXES
Current Real Property Tax $3,413,306 $3,413,306 $3,504,878 $91,572
Commercial Forest 425 425 458 33
Delinquent Reai Property Tax 362,256 362,256 314,997 (47,259)
Delinquent Personai Property Tax 17,000 17,000 16,189 (811)
Swamp Tax 16,635 16,635 16,635 0
Single Business Tax 0 0 0 0]
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 42,380 42,380 65,410 23,030
Tax Reverted Lands 0 0 10 10
Convention Facilities Tax 107,000 107,000 102,879 (4,121)
Cigarette Tax 1,176 1,176 0 (1,178)
Real Estate Transfer Tax 95,000 107,685 107,685 0
Taxes Total 4,055,178 4,067,863 4,129,141 61,278
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Trailer Fees 700 700 866 166
Transient License 0 0 0 0
Total Licenses & Permits 700 700 866 166
FEDERAL GRANTS
Friend of the Court IV - D incentive 0 0 0
Friend of the Court IV - D CRP 271,833 271,833 261,579 (10,254)
Prosecuting Attorney IV - D CRP 28,889 28,889 22,885 (6,004)
COPS Fast Grant Program 0 0 0 0
Forest Patrol 3,150 3,150 3,761 611
Commercial Forest 0 0 0 o]
Emergency Services 22,683 22 683 58,939 36,256
Total Federal Grants 326,555 326,555 347,164 20,609
STATE SOURCES
Circuit Judge Salary Supplement 30,635 30,635 30,635 0
Circuit Court DOC Reimbursement 12,500 12,500 22,895 10,395
Circuit Court Jury Reimbursement [o] 0 o] 0
District Judge Salary Supplement 27,434 27,434 27,434 0
Probate Judge Salary 94,195 94,195 101,469 7,274
Probate Judge Salary Supplement 45,724 45724 45,724 0
Youth Services Director 27,600 27,600 (27,317) (54,917)
Prosecuting Attorney - Victims
Rights Reimbursements 18,000 18,000 9,000 (9,000)
Prosecuting Attorney DOC Reimbursement 1,000 1,000 4,536 3,536
FOC IV D Incentive 15,600 15,600 36,092 20,492
Township Liquor License 1,350 1,350 1,671 321
SSCENT Drug Team [0} 0 0 0
Marine Safety 32,072 29,879 28,631 (1,248)
Cops in Schools 83,333 83,333 83,333 o]
Snowmobile Safety 30,863 30,863 24,844 (6,019)
State Revenue Sharing 507,277 490,000 485,528 (4,472)
Total State Sources 927,583 908,113 874,475 (33,638)
REIMBURSEMENTS FROM OTHER AGENCIES
Circuit Court Salaries 63,716 63,716 58,347 (5,369)
Circuit Court Fringes 25513 25,513 22,537 (2,976)
Attorney Fees Reimb 8,300 8,300 8,635 335
Circuit Court Misc Reimb 3,000 3,000 5,748 2,748
District Court Salaries 32,203 22,097 22,097 [
District Court Fringe Benefits 7485 7,485 2,993 (4,492)
Friend of the Court Salaries 47 297 47,297 78,905 31,608
Friend of the Court Fringe Benefits 16,144 16,144 7,449 (8,695)
Friend of the Court Misc Reimb 0 0 10,604 10,604
Friend of the Court Appointed Council 0 0 3,102 3,102
Total Reimbursements 203,658 193,552 220,417 26,865

The footnotes are an integrai part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budget
Approved Amended Actual {Unfavorable)
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Circuit Court Cost 10,000 10,000 10,571 571
Circuit Court Fees 13,000 13,000 10,715 (2,285)
District Court Cost 365,000 407,431 407,432 1
District Court Fines 22,500 22,500 30,569 8,069
District Court Fees 3,600 3,600 3,919 319
Clearance Card Cost 4,500 4,500 4,080 (420)
Bond Cost, Bond Forfeitures 25,000 74,547 74,547 0
Ordinances Fines & Costs 45,000 61,684 61,684 0
Friend of the Court Cost 1,500 1,500 1,178 (322)
Friend of the Court Fees 16,800 16,800 19,894 3,094
Friend of the Court Child Support 0 0 4,729 4729
Friend of the Court Fines 2,000 2,000 1,178 (822)
Probate Court Fees 15,000 15,000 14,276 (724)
Probate Court - Sale of Supplies 200 200 671 471
Clerks Fees 38,545 38,545 42,033 3,488
Administration Fees 69,100 77,290 82,561 5,271
Voter Registration 200 200 200 o]
Prosecuting Attorney - Services 8,500 8,500 11,601 3,101
Equalization 300 300 267 (33)
Welfare Fraud Reimbursement 1,500 1,500 559 (941)
Register of Deeds - Recording Fees 155,000 268,963 268,964 1
County Survey & Remonumentation 225 225 432 207
Court Funding Reimbursement 148,000 148,000 147,734 (266)
Tax Certificates 1,200 1,200 1,511 311
Tax History 2,800 2,800 2,676 (124)
Inheritance Tax - Collection Fees 0 0 0 0
Purchasers Filing Fees 0 0 7 7
Sheriff's Services 63,127 64,627 75,999 11,372
Animal Control 38,200 38,200 41,039 2,839
Secondary Road Patrol 67,711 70,474 68,142 (2,332)
Jait 155,600 159,618 152,429 (7,189)
Planning Department - Services 28,264 28,264 28,833 569
Building & Grounds 15,472 15,472 12,455 (3,017)
Total Charges for Services 1,317,844 1,556,940 1,582,885 25,945
INTEREST AND RENTALS
Interest Earned 125,800 125,800 32,606 (93,194)
Rents and Royalties 6,000 6,000 3,084 (2,918)
Total Interest & Rentals 131,800 131,800 35,690 (96,110)
OTHER REVENUES
Data Processing 79,358 79,358 83,753 4,395
Reimbursements 13,487 13,487 11,469 (2,018)
Bad Check Charge 800 800 560 (240)
Sales of Supplies 0 ] 0 0
Workers Comp Div 15,000 15,000 14,802 {198)
Miscellaneous 100 746 2,076 1,330
Total Other Revenues 108,745 109,391 112,660 3,269
TRANSFERS IN
Friend of the Court 0 5,559 5,559 0
Family Counseling 0 0 500 500
Dept. Cont/Surplus 0 5,392 10,722 5,330
Vehicle Fund 0 0 o] 0
Marine Law Fund 0 2,193 2,193 0
Circuit Court 0 o] o] 0
Dare Golf Trust 10,000 10,000 34,195 24,195
Public Imp Fund 0 0 o] o]
Budget Stability Fund 44,831 108,820 9,626 (99,194)
Forestry Fund 0 0 0 [o]
Tax Revolving Fund 298,809 298,809 298,808 o]
Total Transfers In 353,640 430,773 361,604 (69,169)
TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS IN $7,425,703 $7,725,687 $7,664,902 (3$60,785)

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance
Budget Favorable
Approved Amended Actual {Unfavorable)
LEGISLATIVE
Board of Commissioners $72,355 $72,355 $69,776 $2,579
JUDICIAL
Circuit Court 559,388 562,198 546,791 15,407
District Court 376,130 366,298 366,267 31
Friend of the Court 575,961 634,886 563,164 71,722
Jury Commission 3,780 3,780 2,220 1,560
Probate Court - General 255,960 259 550 257,745 1,805
Total Judicial 1,771,219 1,826,712 1,736,187 90,525
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Elections 0 0 (300) 300
County Clerk 235,637 242,698 242,697 1
County Administrator 275,894 283,633 282,490 1,143
General Services 144,742 143,816 143,816 0
Data Processing 37,900 27,200 22,928 4,272
Equalization Department 249,157 275,964 257,747 18,217
Prosecuting Attorney 362,532 366,066 345,596 20,470
Register of Deeds 160,883 163,194 154,090 9,104
Treasurer 148,713 165,486 165,486 0
Building and Grounds 251,817 242,518 242,053 465
Plat Board 107 107 0 107
Drain Commissioner 6,425 6,425 5,290 1,135
DSS Board 6,001 6,105 6,105 0
Economic Development 0 0 0 o]
Building Authority 352 352 276 786
Public Works Board 0 0 0 0
Private Industry Board 1,252 1,252 1,149 103
Revenue Sharing Board 0 1,526 1,525 1
Tax Allocation Board 0 0 0 0
Total General Government 1,881,412 1,926,342 1,870,948 55,394
PUBLIC SAFETY
Sheriff 694,323 679,800 679,800 0
Dare 0 0 0 0
Marine Safety 54,556 43,843 43,843 0
Jail 805,370 984,371 984,429 (58)
Snowmobile Patrol 36,489 33,675 33,675 0
Emergency Services 61,475 103,726 103,725 1
Animai Control 81,801 77,941 77,940 1
Secondary Road Patrol 67,461 62,029 62,029 0
SSCENT Drug Team 69,438 60,967 59,380 1,587
Cops in Schools 125,330 148,540 148,539 1
USFS Patrol Assistance 3,150 3,532 3,531 1
COPS Fast Grant Program 0 0 0 o]
K-9 59,370 58,701 58,701 0
Total Public Safety 2,058,763 2,257,125 2,255,592 1,533

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Variance
Budget Favorable
Approved Amended Actual (Unfavorable)
HEALTH AND WELFARE
Medical Examiner 44,505 58,178 58,178 0
Contagious Diseases 3,000 3,000 1,966 1,034
Veterans Burial 0 0 0 0
Veterans Counselor 26,799 28,386 28,385 1
Veterans Trust - Rent 0 0 0 0
MSU Co-operative Extension 66,146 66,146 65,924 222
MECCA 83,700 83,700 82,667 1,033
Heaith Department 138,801 138,801 138,803 (2)
District Health Dept - Rent 112,745 112,745 112,745 0
Jaws of Life Team 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
Mental Health 165,000 165,000 165,000 0
Substance Abuse 54,002 51,942 51,626 316
Conservation Resource Alliance 500 500 500 0
Soil Conservation 8,000 8,000 8,000 0
Area Agency on Aging 4,121 4,121 4,121 o}
HSCB 1,000 1,000 1,000 o}
Northwest Commission 4,174 4174 4174 ¢}
Planning 130,399 130,999 119,293 11,706
Total Health and Welfare 843,892 857,692 843,382 14,310
CULTURAL AND RECREATION
Airport Authority 0 o o] 0
Agricuitural Fair 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Manistee Recreation Association 4,500 4,500 4,500 0
Historical Museum 0 0 o] 0
Total Education & Recreation 14,500 14,500 14,500 0
OTHER
Special Charges 0 5307 5,608 (301)
Transfers to other units 0 0 0
Insurance and Bonds 214,200 196,292 196,227 65
Total Other Charges 214,200 201,599 201,835 (2386)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,856,341 7,156,325 6,992,220 164,105
TRANSFERS OUT
Employee Training 7,000 7,000 7,000 o]
Law Library 4,000 4,000 19,406 (15,406)
Child Care 77,849 77,849 149,571 (71,722)
Airport Improv. Fund 70,000 70,000 70,000 0
County Vehicle Fund 45,000 45,000 45,000 0
Public Improvement Fund 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
Capital improvement 0 0 o] 0
Buiiding Authority Fund 150,000 150,000 150,000 0
Other funds 0 0 0 0
Computer Fund 37,250 37,250 37,250 0
DD Caseflow Fund 0 0 0 0
Health Insurance 41,500 41,500 41,500 0
Elections fund 35,000 35,000 35,000 0
CT Service Fund 10,000 10,000 10,030 (30)
Jail Loan 71,013 71,013 70,955 58
Dept Contingency Surplus 0 0 16,219 (16,219)
Remonumentation Fund 750 750 750 0
Total Transfer Out 569,362 569,362 672,681 (103,319)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES &
TRANSFERS OQUT $7,425,703 $7,725,687 $7,664,901 $60,786

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASSETS

Cash

Accounts Receivable
Assets Limited as to Use
Property and Equipment
Prepaid Insurance
Inventories

Other Assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY

Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences
Salaries and Related Liabilities
Maintenance of Effort

Due to Other Local Units
Other Current Liabilties
Third-party settlements
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Equity

Retained Earnings

Total Liabilities &
Fund Equity

MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

68

Medical
Care
Facility Total
$31,270 $31,270
745,618 745618
2,210,749 2,210,749
1,548,514 1,548,514
0 0
28,540 28,540
0 0
$4,564 691 $4,564,691
$441,195 $441,195
702,208 702,208
110,368 110,368
0 0
0 0
39,475 39,475
223,259 223,259
0 0
1,516,505 1,516,505
3,048,186 3,048,186
$4,564,691 $4 564,691

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Property Taxes
Shared Revenue
Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee Salaries
Maintenance of Effort
Depreciation
Other

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Income
Non-Operating Gains
Depreciation on Fixed Assets Acquired by Grant
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

RETAINED EARNINGS, ENDING
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Medical
Care
Facility Total
$5,913,111 $5,913,111
365,429 365,429
157,841 157,841
337,112 337,112
6,773,493 6,773,493
3,758,495 3,758,495
142,394 142,394
0 0
2,744 A37 2,744 437
6,645 326 6,645,326
128,167 128,167
34,651 34,651
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
162,818 162,818
2,885,368 2,885,368
0 0
$3,048,186 $3,048,186

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from residents and third-party payors

Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Proportionate share receipts
Property tax receipts

Operating Activities

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions (withdrawals)
Net Cash Provided for by Non-Financing
Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest Received
Sale (purchase) of assets limited as to use
Deposits to Deferred Compensation Plan
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from local Grant
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
& Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents, Oct. 1

Cash & Cash Equivalents, Sept. 30

Medical
Care
Facility Total
$5,932,705 $5,932,705
(5,910,089) (5,910,089)

157,841 157,841
365,429 365,429
545,886 545,886

814 814

814 814

34,651 34,651
409,293 409,293

0 0

443 944 443 944

0] 0
(991,399) {991,399)
{991,399) (991,399)
(755) (755)

356,254 356,254

$355,499 $355,499

The footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
BALANCE SHEET
COMBINED DEBT SERVICE FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Building Jail Combined
Authority Building Debt Service
ASSETS Debt Bond Funds
Cash $2,751 $74,834 $77,585
Taxes Receivable 0 73,470 73,470
TOTAL ASSETS $2,751 $148,304 $151,055
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Notes Payable 30 $4,294 $4,294
Deferred Revenue 0 73,470 73,470
Fund Balance 2,751 70,540 73,291
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $2,751 $148,304 $151,055

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE
COMBINED DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Building Jail Combined
Authority Building Debt Service
Debt Bond Funds
REVENUES
Revenue Tax $0 $114,564 $114,564
Interest 0 0 0
Other Revenue 0 0 0
0 114,564 114,564
EXPENDITURES
Principle 45,000 55,000 100,000
Interest 41,606 15,955 57,561
Other 1,238 35,794 37,032
Total Expenditures 87,844 106,749 194,593
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures (87,844) 7,815 (80,029)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from financing 0 0 0
Operating Transfers In 150,000 0 150,000
Operating Transfers Out 61,606 0 61,606
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 88,394 0 88,394
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures z 550 7,815 8,365
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses
Fund Balance, October 1 2,201 62,725 64,926
Fund Balance, September 30 $2,751 $70,540 $73,291

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASSETS
Cash
Work In Process
Taxes Receivable

Total Assets
LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY
Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Interest Payable
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance
Unreserved

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity

MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Building Jail
Authority Expansion
Construction Construction Total

$20,359 $0 $20,359
0] 0
0 0
20,359 0 20,359
1,900 0] 1,900
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,900 0 1,900
18,459 0 18,459
$20,359 $0 $20,359

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financiai Statements.
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MANISTEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE
BUILDING AUTHORITY - BUDGET VS ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Taxes $0 $0 $0 0
Grant 0 0 0 0
Interest 4,520 4,520 4,520 0
Total Revenue 4,520 4,520 4,520 0
EXPENDITURES
Payment on Installment Purchase 0 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 2,655,012 2,655,012 2,655,012 0
Miscellaneous Expense 24093 24,093 24,093 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures (2,674,585) (2,674,585) (2,674,585) 0
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Debt 0 0 0 0
Operating Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Operating Transfers Out 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures and Other (2,674,585) (2,674,585) (2,674,585) 0
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses
Fund Balance, October 1 2,693,044 2,693,044 2,693,044
Fund Balance, September 30 $18,459 $18,459 $18,459

The footnotes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issues: Unqualified
Internal Control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? No
Reportable conditions identified that are not
considered to be material No
Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness identified? No
Reportable conditions identified that are not
considered to be material No
Type of auditor’'s report issued on compliance for
major programs Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a)

of circular A-133 No
Identification of Major Programs
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
93.563 Friend of the Court Cooperative

Prosecuting Attorney Cooperative
Title IV-D Incentive Program

14.228 Community Development Block Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish Type A and
Type B programs $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee Yes

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
None
Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported
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